
CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

DECEMBER 15, 2014 

6:30 P.M.  

                                                                  
 1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 2.  ROLL CALL / 

      INVOCATION /  Reverend Charles Jackson of Macedonia Missionary Baptist Church 

     PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

 3.  APPROVE MINUTES:      Council Meeting Minutes / December 1, 2014   

                                                     Council Work Session Minutes / December 8, 2014 

 

PRESENTATION:     Mobile National Estuary Program / Ms. Roberta Swann 

 

PRESENTATION:    Certificate of Recognition / Melvin McCarley 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS:    
 

                   Annexation:   Provision Investment, LLC 

                   Property Located:   West of the Estates of Tiawasee Subdivision and Southeast of 

the intersection of Park Drive and Pollard Road 

                   Present Zoning:   RSF-2, Single Family Residential District, Baldwin County 

District 15 

                   Requested Zoning:  R-1, Low Density Single Family Residential District, City of Daphne 

                   Recommendation:   Unanimous favorable  

 
       

4. REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 
A. FINANCE COMMITTEE – Fry  

   Review minutes / December 8
th
  

   1.)    Ordinances 

            a.)   ATRIP Project: Roundabout CR 64 & CR 13 – Baldwin County Intergovernmental Project /                 

                   Ordinance 2014-60 
 

             2.)   Resolutions 

                     a.)   Bid Award: Fuel / Davison Fuels & Oil  / Resolution 2014-61 

 

   3.)   Financial Reports: 

 Treasurers Report / November 2014 

 Sales & Use Tax Collections/ November 2014 

 Lodging Tax Collections / November 2014 

 

B. BUILDINGS & PROPERTY  COMMITTEE -  Davis  

   Review minutes / December 1
st
  

 

C. PUBLIC SAFETY -  Rudicell      

   Review minutes / December 10
th
  

 

D. CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  -  Scott   

    Review minutes / December 10
th
  

 

E. PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY – LeJeune           

 

 

 

 

December 15 2014 Council Meeting 1



COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                          DECEMBER 15, 2014                                 PAGE   2 

 

 

5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  
   A.  Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones   

    

B. Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway   

   Review minutes / December 3
rd

  

 

C. Industrial Development Board – Davis     

 

D. Library Board - Lake  

 

E. Planning Commission – Scott     
 

F. Recreation Board – LeJeune 

 

   G. Utility Board – Fry 

        Review minutes / October 29
th
  

 

6. Mayor’s Report 

 

7. City Attorney’s Report 

 

8. Department Heads Comments 

 

9. City Clerk’s Report 

    1.  MOTION:  To reset  Public a Hearing date for January 20, 2015 and approve advertising to consider the  

                               following: 

 

             a.)  Pre-Zoning:     George Kalasountas 

                  Property Located:  On the south side of U.S. Highway 90 at Renaissance Boulevard 

                    Present Zoning:   RSF-1, Single Family Residential District, Baldwin County 

       District 15 

                    Requested Zoning:  B-2, General Business / R-7(T), Townhouse / R-1, Low Density 

        Single Family Residential District, City of Daphne 

                    Recommendation:  Three motions were made and failed which resulted in an 

unfavorable recommendation  

 

               b.)  Annexation:   George Kalasountas 

                     Property Located:  On the south side of U.S. Highway 90 at Renaissance Boulevard 

                     Recommendation:   Favorable 
 

   2.)   EVENTS PERMITS  

          a.)   Prodisee Pantry Turkey Trot / October 24, 2015 

 

         b.)   Scott Ward Memorial “Fit for Duty” 5K /  November 21, 2015 

 

         c.)   The Jubilee Festival and the attached requests /  September 26 & 27, 2015 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

December 15 2014 Council Meeting 2



 

COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                          DECEMBER 15, 2014                                 PAGE   3 

 

 

 3.)  MOTION:   To change the following committee meeting schedules as follows starting January 1, 2015: 

1
st
 Monday of the Month                                    

Buildings and Property  Committee meeting / 4:30 p.m.  

Public Works Committee meeting / 5:30 p.m. 

 

2
nd

 Monday of the Month 

   Finance Committee meeting / 4:30 p.m. 

 

   3
rd

 Monday of the Month 

   Public Safety Committee meeting / 4:30 p.m. 

   Code Enforcement & Ordinance Committee meeting / 5:30 p.m. 

 
 

10. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:   

 

 

 11. RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

 

RESOLUTIONS: 

a.) Bid Award:  Fuel /  Davison Fuels & Oil. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2014-61 

 

 

 

ORDINANCES:  

 

          1
ST

   READ 
B.)  Annexation:  Provision Investment, LLC / Property Located West of the Estates of  

       Tiawasee Subdivision and Southeast of the Intersection of Park Drive and 

       Pollard Road. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2014-59        

 

b.)  ATRIP Project:  Roundabout CR 64 & CR 13 Baldwin County  

       Intergovernmental Project. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2014-60 

 

 

12.    COUNCIL COMMENTS        

13.  ADJOURN 

 

 

 

December 15 2014 Council Meeting 3



CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

CITY COUNCIL: 

COUNCILMAN RUDICELL   PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN LAKE    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN FRY    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN SCOTT    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN LEJEUNE   PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN DAVIS    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCIL PRESIDENT CONAWAY  PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

 

MAYOR: 

MAYOR HAYGOOD    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

 

CITY CLERK: 

REBECCA HAYES     PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

 

CITY ATTORNEY: 

JAY ROSS      PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

December 15 2014 Council Meeting 4



DECEMBER 1, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e1
 

                                                                                          

1.    CALL TO ORDER:  

There being a quorum present Council President Conaway called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.       

 

2.    ROLL CALL/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

Pastor Johnny Hunt with Celebration Church gave the invocation. 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:    

Tommie Conaway; John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron Scott; Robin LeJeune; Joe Davis. 

 

ABSENT:  Pat Rudicell. 

 

Also present:  Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Sarah Toulson, Assistant City Clerk; Jay Ross, City Attorney; 

Vickie Hinman, HR Director; Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; James White, Fire Chief; David 

McKelroy, Recreation Director; Richard Merchant, Building Official; Tonja Young, Library Director; 

Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director; Adrienne Jones, Planning Director; Lt. Judd Beedy, Police 

Department; Battalion Chief, Kenny Hanak, Fire Department; Several Firefighters; Dorothy Morrison, 

Beautification Committee and DRA; Larry Cooke, BZA; Don Ouellette, BZA; Mickey Boykin, Daphne 

Museum; Kevin Boucher, Adams & Reese. 

 

Absent: Mayor Haygood; David Carpenter, Police Chief; Michael Hoyt, Municipal Judge.  

 

3.    APPROVE MINUTES:    

November 17, 2014 Council Meeting Minutes 

Councilman Lake amended the minutes to include the reason for his resigning from the Finance 

Committee to include he disagreed with the procedure for appointing the chairman, and that there would 

be a super-majority on the committee. 

 

Councilman Davis amended the minutes to include the reason he left the dais which was to talk with a 

constituent from his district, Mrs. Mary Gibbs, regarding her comments during public participation.  

 

 

PRESENTATION:   Certificate of Recognition / Battalion Chief Kenny Hanak 

 

Council President Conaway read and presented to Kenny the certificate of recognition from the city.  

Councilman Scott read and presented him a certificate from Governor Bentley, and Councilman Lake 

read and presented him with a certificate from the Alabama State Fire College. 

 

 

 

4.    REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

 A.   FINANCE COMMITTEE – Fry 

No report.  The next meeting will be Monday, December 8
th

 at 4:00 p.m. 

 

December 15 2014 Council Meeting 5



DECEMBER 1, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e2
 

B.   BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE - Davis 
The committee met before the council meeting, and the minutes will be in the next packet. 

 

C.   PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE – Rudicell  

No report.  The minutes for the November 12
th

 meeting are in the packet.  The next meeting will be 

December 10
th

 at 4:30 p.m. 

 

D.  CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE – Scott 

No report. The next meeting will be December 10
th

 after the Public Safety meeting. 

 

E.   PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE – LeJeune 

No report.  The next meeting will be December 15
th

. 

 

 

5.    REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS: 

      A.   Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones 

No report.   

 

B.   Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway 

The next meeting will be December 3
rd

 at 5:30 p.m. 

 

C.   Industrial Development Board – Davis 

There will not be a meeting in December, and the next meeting will be January 26
th

.  

 

D.   Library Board – Lake 

There will not be a meeting in December.  The next meeting will be January 8
th

.  Councilman Lake 

reported the different activities going on at the Library.   

 

     E.   Planning Commission – Scott 

The next Planning Commission meeting will be December 18
th

 at 5:00 p.m. 

     

 F.   Recreation Board – LeJeune 

The next meeting will be December 10
th

, and there will be a mandatory meeting with the firms that 

submitted letters of intent for the Recreation Facilities. 

 

    G.   Utility Board – Fry 

No report.  The next meeting will be December 3
rd

.  

 

 

 

 

6.    REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

 A.  Mayor’s Report 

No report. 

 

December 15 2014 Council Meeting 6



DECEMBER 1, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e3
 

B.  City Attorney’s Report 

No report. 

 

C.   Department Head Comments 

James White – Fire Chief – thanked council for recognizing Kenny Hanak, and their support for all the 

firemen. 

 

Margaret Thigpen – Civic Center Director – reported that the Hotel Tourism meeting will be Thursday.  

The Baldwin Pops concert will be December 9
th

 doors open at 6:00 p.m. and starts at 7:00 p.m., and they 

will be collecting for Toys for Tots. 

 

Vickie Hinman – Human Resources Director – reported that the posting for the Finance Director 

closed Friday with 13 new applications, and four of them were CPA’s, and they are scheduling first 

interviews this week. 

 

Richard Johnson – Public Works Director – reported Light Up Daphne will be Thursday beginning at 

6:00 p.m. with the lighting of the Christmas tree at 7:00 p.m. to kick off the Christmas season. 

 

  

     D.   City Clerk’s Report  
   a.)   ABC License / Top of the Bay / 010 – Lounge Retail Liquor / Class 1 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to approve the ABC License for Top of the Bay / 010 – Lounge 

Retail Liquor / Class 1.   Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

     

 

        b.)   Motion: Authorize the Mayor to enter into an agreement with EnCompass360 regarding the 

                                 Hazard Mitigation Grant Program – Safe Room for Publics Works  

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to authorize the Mayor to enter into an agreement with 

EnCompass360 regarding the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program – Safe Room for Publics 

Works.  Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

7.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

No one spoke. 

 

 

8.    RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

         
a.)    Declaring Certain Property Surplus / 1998 Ford F-150. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2014-57 

December 15 2014 Council Meeting 7



DECEMBER 1, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e4
 

 

b.)   Supporting the Alabama Department of Transportation to Conduct a 

       Signal Warrant Study at the Intersection of Bellaton Avenue, Austin Road  

       and State Route 181. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2014-58 

 

c.)   Donation of Real Property to City of Daphne. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2014-59 

 

d.)   Donation of Real and Personal Property to City of Daphne.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2014-60 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Resolutions 2014-57; 2014-58; 2014-59 

and 2014-60.  Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2014-57.  Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2014-58.  Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Davis to adopt Resolution 2014-59.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Davis to adopt Resolution 2014-60.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 

 

ORDINANCES: 

 

        2
ND

  READ 

a.)   Appropriating Funds: Part-Time Events Assistant OR Additional  

        Overtime and Temporary Services. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2014-53 

 

b.)   To Contribute to the Twenty Percent (20%) Local Match Requirement 

        Funding a Traffic Signal System Technology Enhancements Study for  

       Corridors Servicing the Eastern Shore. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ../Ordinance 2014-54 

December 15 2014 Council Meeting 8



DECEMBER 1, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e5
 

 

c.)   Recreational Trails Program Project: Village Point Park Preserve 

       Boardwalk/Trails Extension / Project #14-RT-54-08. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2014-55 

 

d.)   Appropriation of Funds: Appraisal, Survey and Associated Fees 

       For Marino Property Located Near D’Olive Creek. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2014-56 

 

e.)   Repeal Ordinance 2011-08 and Establishing Rules, Regulation, 

       Rates and A Lease Agreement for the Rental of the  Daphne  

       Civic Center. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2014-57 

 

f.)   Repeal Ordinance 2011-09 and Establishing Rules, Regulation, 

       Rates and A Lease Agreement for the Rental of the  Bayfront  

       Pavilion. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2014-58 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Ordinance 2014-53.  Seconded by 

Councilman Fry. 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Davis to adopt Ordinance 2014-53.  Seconded by Councilman Davis.  

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Ordinances 2014-54, 2014-55, 2014-56, 

2014-57 and 2014-58.   Seconded by Councilman Lake.  

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2014-54.  Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2014-55.  Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Fry to adopt Ordinance 2014-56.  Seconded by Councilman Davis. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

December 15 2014 Council Meeting 9



DECEMBER 1, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e6
 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2014-57.  Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Fry to adopt Ordinance 2014-58.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 
9.    COUNCIL COMMENTS 

Councilman Lake commented on how hard it is to turn off Academy Drive onto north Main Street and 

suggested looking in to putting a traffic light there to relieve the problem. He reported things he learned 

at the NLC conference such as alternate transportation and using bicycles to get around the city. 

 

Councilman Fry thanked the Police and Fire Departments for their handling of some events occurring 

in the city, and he appreciated their fine work.  He is looking forward to the activities on Thursday. 

 

Councilman Scott reminded everyone that the Christmas parade is December 17
th

 at 11:00 a.m. 

 

Councilman Davis expressed his thanks to Public Safety for keeping the citizens of Daphne safe.  He 

also is looking forward to the activities on Thursday. 

 

Council President Conaway thanked the Beautification Committee for the pretty decorations in the 

lobby, and she also thanked Public Safety for the hard work they do for the city. 

 

10.   ADJOURN: 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Fry to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS, THE MEETING ADJOURNED AT 

7:15 P.M. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,                                  Certification of Presiding Officer 

                               

                                        

__________________________________   _____________________________   

Rebecca A. Hayes,     Tommie Conaway,     

City Clerk      Council President 

December 15 2014 Council Meeting 10



DECEMBER 8, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

1.    CALL TO ORDER 

Council President Conaway called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 

2.    ROLL CALL 

Council Members Present: Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell; John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron Scott; 

Robin LeJeune; Joe Davis. 

 

Also present: Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Jay Ross, City Attorney; Kevin Boucher, Attorney, 

Adams & Reese. 

 

Absent:  Mayor Haygood. 

 

3.    AT&TU-VERSE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT / MS. GIGI ARMBRECHT 

Ms. Armbrecht discussed with council the renewal of the AT&T franchise agreement.  The last 

time it was renewed was 2009.  They pay the city 5% gross receipts every quarter.  The last check 

was for about $37,000.  They will add to the new agreement free video services to buildings on 

the way of U-Verse, and city hall is on the way.  There will be two streams of video channels 

available Public Education and Governmental.  AT&T provides the vehicle and the city provides 

the programs.  Ms. Armbrecht said that the city can charge a 1% fee on the U-Verse services, and 

that money will come back to the city and the city can use it to set up equipment to broadcast 

meetings.  Councilman LeJeune asked Ms. Armbrecht about buying broadcasting equipment, and 

she said that she will send him some information. 

 

Consensus of council is to put the franchise agreement on the December 15, 2015 council meeting 

agenda. 

 

5.    ANYTHING ELSE DEEMED NECESSARY 

      1.   Rescheduling Committee Meetings 

Council discussed rescheduling committee meetings that consist of councilmembers.  

 

The consensus of council was to have a motion on the December 15, 2014 council meeting 

agenda with the following changes that will begin January 1, 2015: 

 

   1
st
 Monday of the month 4:30 p.m. Buildings and Property Committee     

       5:30 p.m. Public Works Committee 

 

   2
nd

 Monday of the month 4:30 p.m. Finance Committee 

 

   3
rd

 Monday of the month 4:30 p.m. Public Safety Committee 

       5:30 p.m. Code Enforcement/Ordinance Committee 

December 15 2014 Council Meeting 11



DECEMBER 8, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

 

 

      2.   Redistricting 

Council discussed redistricting for the 2016 election.  They would like to discuss it at the January 

Work Session. 

 

Council requested the City Clerk to gather population information and send to council. 

 

Councilman Davis reminded everyone not to forget TimberCreek when compiling data by zip 

code.   

 

Council also wants to look at polling places for the 2016 election. 

 

6.    ADJOURN 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 7:40 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted,     Certification of Presiding Officer 

 

 

_________________________________   ____________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk    Tommie Conaway, Council President 

 

 

December 15 2014 Council Meeting 12



 

 

CERTIFICATE 

OF  

APPRECIATION 

 
“Public Works Superintendent Melvin McCarley” 

 

 

WHEREAS, Melvin McCarley began his career with the City of Daphne on 

November 4, 1987 as a building inspector and; 

 

WHEREAS, in October of 1990, he transferred to the Public Works Street 

Department where he became Street Supervisor the following year; and, 

 

WHEREAS, on July 8, 1993, Melvin was promoted to Public Works 

Superintendent, where he has assisted the Public Works Director and has twice served 

as Interim Public Works Director; and 

 

WHEREAS, he joined the Daphne Volunteer Fire Department in October of 

1971 at the tender age of 18 where he has served as Treasurer, Lieutenant, Captain 

and Assistant Chief, and has served as Chief for the past 18 years; and 

 

WHEREAS, during his tenure as the Daphne Volunteer Fire Chief, the 

Volunteer Fire Department has provided over six million dollars to the City of 

Daphne to purchase six Pumper Trucks and various other firefighting equipment and 

build the Training Station and Burn Tower.  Melvin is also one of the founding 

members of the Daphne Search and Rescue Squad; and  

 

WHEREAS, on December 17, 2014 Melvin McCarley will retire from the 

City of Daphne where he has served faithfully for 27 years and has assisted in many 

projects, not only in Public Works, but throughout all City departments. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne, 

Alabama hereby proclaim their highest appreciation to Melvin McCarley for his 

dedication and service to City of Daphne.  

 

___________________________ 

Dane Haygood, Mayor 

 

     ATTEST: 

       ___________________________ 

       Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

December 15 2014 Council Meeting 13



 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARING  

 

DECEMBER 15, 2014 
 

TO CONSIDER: 

 

Annexation for the Kalasountas property has been withdrawn 

per a letter from the owner and to be considered with the Pre-

zoning for the property on January 20, 2015 

 
 

 

 1.  Annexation:   Provision Investment, LLC 

      Property Located:                         West of the Estates of Tiawasee Subdivision and Southeast of     

                                             the intersection of Park Drive and Pollard Road 

 

      Present Zoning:   RSF-2, Single Family Residential District, Baldwin County 

District 15 

 

      Requested Zoning:  R-1, Low Density Single Family Residential, City of Daphne 

      Recommendation:   Favorable  

        

   

 

 

 
 

 

December 15 2014 Council Meeting 14



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 15



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 16



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 17



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 18



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 19



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 20



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 21



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 22



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 23



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 24



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 25



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 26



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 27



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 28



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 29



CITY OF DAPHNE 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES 
DECEMBER 8, 2014 

4:00 P.M. 
 
I.      CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
The meeting was called to order at 4:00 p.m.  Present were Chairman Randy Fry, Councilwoman Mrs. 
Conaway, Councilman Joseph Davis, Councilman Ron Scott, Senior Accountant Suzânne Henson and Human 
Resource Director Vickie Hinman. 
 
Also in attendance were Councilman Pat Rudicell, Councilman John Lake, Public Works Director Richard 
Johnson, Mayor’s Executive Assistant Jane Ellis, and Mr. Larry Cooke, BZA.  
 
 

I.      PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
 
 

III.    HUMAN RESOURCES BUSINESS 
 

       A.  Update on Human Resources Department Activity 
       
Mrs. Vickie Hinman reviewed the Human Resource Report including open position status. 
 

Positions      Status 

 
Finance Director     Closed 11/25 – interviewing applicants 

PT Firefighter      Closed – 12/5 

Office Asst., City Hall     Interviewing 

PSW (Grounds)      Posted – 12/3-12/17 

Events Assistant (Civic Center)    Posted: 12/3 – 12/17 

Computer Services Technician   Open 

Safety Coordinator     Open 

PT Marketing Coordinator    Open 

Accounting Technician (Revenue)   Open 

Planner (Community Development)   Open 

Building Maintenance Supervisor   Open  

PW Deputy Director     Open 

 

Mrs. Hinman discussed the pending positions.  Discussion was made on the Finance Director position. Mrs. 

Hinman stated that 5 applicants had been interviewed for the Finance Director position and that 3 of those 

interviewed have a CPA License.  Mrs. Hinman noted she will be scheduling some follow-up  interviews 

hopefully before the Christmas Holidays.   Mrs. Hinman discussed the 3 positions that require a new job 

reclassification and noted these  will need a new job description from Archer.  Mrs. Hinman state the 3 positions 

are Public Works Deputy Director, Planner, and Building Maintenance Supervisor.  There is an existing job 

description for the Planner position but it is now being updated to include the GIS duties so a new job 

description is needed for this position.  Mrs. Hinman noted that the Mayor is looking at making some changes to 

the Building Maintenance Supervisor position which would require it to have a new job description. Mr.   

 

Mrs. Hinman stated that the Mayor wants to receive all the new job descriptions from Archer before he moves 

forward with approving any postings of the Open positions listed above.  Mrs. Hinman also noted that some of 

the positions listed are budgeted to be filled at different times of the year. 

 

December 15 2014 Council Meeting 30



Finance Minutes.doc  2  

Mr. Scott discussed that at the next Ordinance Committee they need to look at compensating the Treasurer’s 

position because in the past this position has been held by the Finance Director and was kind of inclusive of 

those duties.  Mr. Scott noted that Bond Documents had to be executed and there is risk and legal situations and 

compensation needs to be considered.  Mr. Davis asked is this considered an interim arrangement and would this 

be considered additional compensation to help retain a Finance Director.  Mr. Fry stated we have a Treasurer 

appointed and with a six month probation for the new Finance Director the appointment may not change for that 

period of time.  Discussion continued on the Treasurer position.  Mr. Davis stated he did not have a problem 

monetizing that position.  Mr. Scott asked Mrs. Hinman to follow up on getting information on this. 

 

Mrs. Hinman continued to discuss the Safety Committee meeting and noted that there was no Safety Committee 

meeting was held in November due to holiday week.  The next meeting will be held on Wednesday, December 

10 @ 10:00 a.m. 

 

Mrs. Hinman reviewed the HR projects/meetings: 

 A make-up Sexual Harassment training for Supervisors on November 18 

 Collecting items for Relay for Life Silent Auction 

 Interviewing applicants for Finance Director December 4-8 

 Interviewing applicants for City Hall Office Asst. December 2-3 

 December 12 – Red Cross blood drive @ City Hall 

 Retirement of Public Works Superintendent 12/31/2014 

 

 

IV. CURRENT BUSINESS 
 

A.  Financial Reports 

 
1. Report: New Business Licenses – November, 2014    

      
The Business Licenses Report was included in the packet. Total business license issued YTD is 4,279  -  up 
120 from last year 
 

 59 - Total Business License issued in November  -  down 53 from November 2013 (112 licenses 

issued). Mrs. Smith noted the reason the Business License total was down from November last year is because  
the insurance company renewals which are received through the State of Alabama were receive in November 
for 2013 but this year they were received in September.  
 21   - Renewals – out of the 59  

 22   - New businesses with 3 of those having a physical location in Daphne and 
 16   - Prior year licenses.  A map was included showing each of the 4 new business locations.  
 
Mrs. Smith presented a Business License Delinquencies report and reviewed the following: 

 Helpful Facts about Business License 

 Overview of the report including 
o Insurance Companies are not included in the report since the Alabama League of Municipalities 

provides the service of collecting delinquent license fees from Insurance Companies 
o Contractors are not included in the report since fees are only due if the contractor works a 

project in the City. 

 The report is separated to reflect categories of businesses with a physical location in the City from those 
that do not have a physical location in the City. 

 List the top three categories for businesses that are located in the City that are delinquent are: 
o Attorneys 
o Personal Services 
o Professional Services 

 Process that will be followed to track the delinquent businesses. 
Mrs. Smith reviewed that the estimated amount of delinquent Business License is $30,561 but she felt this 
number was high since some businesses may no longer be active.  Mrs. Smith noted the % of businesses 

December 15 2014 Council Meeting 31



Finance Minutes.doc  3  

estimated to be delinquent are 2.8% of the City’s total customers and the delinquent fees are estimated to be 
less than 1% of revenues collected. 
 
Mrs. Smith discussed several methods for cross referencing with other departments such as Code Enforcement, 
Fire Inspection, Building Inspection, Finance and stated that the City departments work very cohesively and that 
has made the process of cross referencing so much more effective.  Mrs. Smith noted that she has discussed 
the City’s process with other cities and commented that the City of Daphne’s departments do an excellent job of 
working together and communicating.  Mr. Davis said that is good to know. 

 
2. Treasurer’s Report:  November, 2014 

 
    Mrs. Henson reviewed the Treasurer’s Report and noted:  

 Total Unrestricted Funds - $9,576,208                   

 Decrease from Last Year’s Unrestricted Funds – ($294,514)      

 # of months of Unrestricted cash to cover monthly operating Expenses & Debt Service – 4.3 months 
compared to the previous year -  4.5  months 

Included in the packet are graphs that show that activity is a little down from the previous year but still on track.  
Mrs. Henson pointed out that the new account 2014 Capital Improvements was added to the Treasurer’s Report 
and the balance $782,116 was from the savings on the new 2014 Bond Issue that is designated for purchases 
for a Technology Park and property related purchases. Mrs. Henson reviewed that the 2012 Construction would 
be closed soon after designated projects are paid out of that fund. Mr. Scott asked how many funds does the 
City have that have to be reconciled.  Mrs. Henson noted there are around 36 funds but all do not have a high 
level of activity like the General Fund or Court or Capital accounts.  Mrs. Henson continued answering questions 
on the bank account funds vs. pooled cash account funds and the process for reconciling those different types 
funds.  Mr. Davis asked about the Encumbrance Report status. Mrs. Henson stated she would be presenting 
that report in January since there are some FY14 pending invoices that will clear some of those line items – for 
example the Library Roof repair. 
      .   

The Treasurer’s Report as of November 30, 2014 Total Unrestricted Funds - $9,576,208             
and Total City Funds - $17,523,948  was presented to be filed for audit.  
 

3..  Sales and Use Taxes: November, 2014 
 

Mrs. Henson reviewed the Sales & Use Tax Reports and Graphs: $1,073,290.88 was collected for November 
2014: 

 YTD Variance over Budget - $35,246.90  +  1.6 % 

 Percent change from last year’s collections   + 2.5%  
 
 

4..  Lodging Tax Collections,  November, 2014 

 
Mrs. Henson reviewed the Lodging Tax Collections Report and noted the collections for November 2014 were 
$74,581.63 which is up $30,668.71 from November’s 2014’s collections of $43,912.92.  

 YTD Variance under Budget:    (4,115.74) ;   -.4% 

 Percentage change from last year’s collections:  +36.9 % 
 
Discussion continued that that November’s collections were up even without the increase in the Lodging Tax 
rate.   
 

 5.  Lodging Tax Fund : Statement of Rev over Exp, November 30,2014  
 
Mrs. Henson reviewed the Lodging Tax report and noted the Unreserved balance for Bayfront related purchases 
is $1,972,232 with a Recreation balance of $307,289.  Mr. Davis discussed how informative the report was.  
Mrs. Henson noted that the preparation of this report is now being done by Mrs. Lisa White, Accountant since 
Mrs. Donna Page had retired.  Mrs. Henson noted this fund requires several Journal entries and allocations 
including payments made to the Industrial Development Board and Downtown Redevelopment so it requires a 
little more time and monitoring than some of the other funds. 

 
 

December 15 2014 Council Meeting 32



Finance Minutes.doc  4  

6. Corrections/Court Fund Report, FY14&  Draft Report through November, 2014  

Mrs. Henson noted the draft reports in the packet are just for informational purposes since the new Jail Food 
system is being set up and had been discussed in previous Finance meetings.  Mrs. Henson noted that for FY14 
$18,694 had to be transferred from the Court side of the fund to the Corrections side since the Correction 
balance was $0 as of 8-30-14.  Mrs. Henson noted that the FY15 report for December will be more reflective of 
the actual monthly activity since October and November include setup cost for equipment and first food product 
purchases.  Mrs. Henson noted she has spoken with Lt. Yelding who is over the Jail and that FY14 averaged 
$8,000/month for inmate meal expenditures and he anticipated the new monthly cost to be more like 
$4,000/month.  Mrs. Henson noted she had set up a table on the bottom of the report to list the equipment setup 
cost so that could be factored out to average the monthly meal cost.  Collections average around $3,500/month 
each for Corrections and Court so additional transfers are anticipated to be required throughout FY15. 
 

7.  Bills Paid Reports –  November, 2014 

 
The Bills Paid Report was presented in the packet.  Mr. Davis asked about a Planet Fitness invoice Discussion 
continued this was for the Fire Department employees.  Discussion continued on the invoices paid. 
 

A. Appropriation Request: (Ordinance) 
 

2012 CONSTRUCTION FUND: 
1. CR64 & CR13 Roundabout: Intergovernmental Project with Baldwin County – City 

Match -  $215,959 
 

Mr. Johnson reviewed the CR64 & CR13 Roundabout Project and stated the original estimate for the City’s 
match was $335,000 but after the bid was opened the match is $215,959.  Mr. Johnson noted the project is 
estimated to take approximately 6 months.  Mrs. Henson stated that after the $215,959 match is paid to the 
County the balance in the 2012 Construction account would be approximately $261,364.  Mr. Johnson 
discussed the City’s share on the pending Main Street ALDOT project would be $150,000 (an 80/20 split) and 
that would be due around February 2015.  Mrs. Henson noted this project was initially planned to be funded 
from the 2012 Construction Fund and after that payment is made the 2012 Construction fund will need to be 
closed and remaining funds transferred to the Capital Reserve Fund as approved by Council in a previous 
Ordinance. 

 

Motion by Mr. Conaway  to appropriate  $215,959  (20% Match) from 2012 Construction 
Fund for the City’s match for the CR64 & CR13 Roundabout Intergovernmental project 
with Baldwin County.  Seconded by Mr. Scott.  Motion carried. 

 

B. Bids: (Resolution) 
1.  2014- A-FUEL 

 
Mr. Johnson reviewed the fuel bid and stated this is the lowest margin we have had in several years.  Mrs. 
Henson stated the current contract (with Retif oil) is $.034/Unleaded & $.037/Diesel above Rack/Wholesale 
cost.  Mr. Johnson stated it is his recommendation to award the bid to the lowest bidder Davison Fuel & Oil. 
 

Motion by Mrs. Conaway to recommend to Council to award the 2015-A-FUEL for a 

margin of $.024 above rack price as bid to Davison Fuel & Oil.  Seconded by Mr. Scott.  
Motion carried. 
 
 

V. OLD BUSINESS 
 

A. FY14 Year-end Close 
Mr. Davis asked where we were on closing FY2014.  Mrs. Henson said that Mr. Hinson had closed March 
around June but it had been re-opened to process a few Journal entries but since the month was previously 
closed the process just had to be run again to re-close March.  Mrs. Henson noted that Mrs. Ciancetta was 
working on closing April. 

December 15 2014 Council Meeting 33



Finance Minutes.doc  5  

 
B. FY14 Community Contributions 

Mrs. Conaway asked if the FY14 Community Contributions had been paid.  Mrs. Henson noted that Mrs. Jane 
Ellis, Mayor’s Assistant had volunteered last week to help by preparing the contributions for payment so that Ms. 
Ciancetta, Deputy Finance Director, could work on closing FY14.  The Community Contribution payments were 
made last week.  Discussion continued on the SEEDS Mama Mia event. 

 
VI. ADJOURN   The meeting adjourned at 5:05 p.m.  

December 15 2014 Council Meeting 34



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 35



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 36



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 37



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 38



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 39



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 40



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 41



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 42



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 43



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 44



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 45



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 46



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 47



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 48



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 49



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 50



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 51



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 52



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 53



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 54



Buildings & Property Committee Meeting 

Monday, December 1, 2014 

5:30 PM 

Daphne City Hall- Executive Conference Room 

 

Committee Minutes 

Present: Councilman Joe Davis; Councilman Randy Fry; Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center 

Director; Sarah Toulson, Assistant City Clerk (Recording Secretary); Richard Merchant, 

Building Official; Richard Johnson, Director of Public Works; Councilman Ron Scott; Selena 

Vaughn, Village Point Foundation; Kevin Boucher, City Attorney; Jay Ross, City Attorney; 

Councilwoman Tommie Conaway; Victoria Phelps, Lake Forest Property Owner’s Association; 

Mary Ann Hampton, Lake Forest Property Owner’s Association; George Lee, Lake Forest 

Property Owner’s Association 

Absent: Rick Whitehead, Councilman Pat Rudicell 

The meeting brought to order at 5:30 pm by Chairman Joe Davis. 

1. Public participation 

 

Mary Ann Hampton opened the floor for questions from the Committee, to address any 

questions or concerns regarding the proposed recreational plan for property within Lake Forest 

subdivision as presented at the November 10, 2014 Work Session.  The Committee discussed the 

actions that would be taken to move the project forward including the need to establish a 

timeline, costs, and opportunities.  City Attorney Jay Ross will update the Committee at the 

January meeting regarding taking this matter to the Planning Commission. 

 

Selena Vaughn addressed the Committee regarding the progress of various projects on behalf of 

the Village Point Foundation.  Chiefly, she reminded the Committee that the ordinance 

approving funding for the Recreational Trails Grant project to extend the boardwalk at Village 

Point Park was up for second read at the Council meeting immediately following this meeting. 

 

2. Approval of minutes: November 3, 2014 

 

Motion by Mr. Fry to adopt the November 3, 2014 minutes as written.  Seconded by Mr. 

Davis.  Motion carried unanimously.  

3. Civic Center & Bayfront report (November): Margaret Thigpen  

 

Margaret Thigpen distributed and discussed her November report.  November 2014 revenue 

totaled $13,142.00, a decrease from November 2013 levels (this included one cancellation).  

Year to Date revenues stood at $30,841.00, below figures listed for FY2014.  Additionally, Ms. 

Thigpen reported total deposits for November stood at $10,556.50, a slight decrease from last 

December 15 2014 Council Meeting 55



year, and that the Civic Center has seen 14 events during November, for a total of 12 days used, 

not including setup days. 

 

Ms. Thigpen then turned to Bayfront Pavilion, reporting revenues for November totaling 

$6,672.00, above November 2013 levels, and year-to-date revenues totaling $16,990.00, an 

increase from 2013 numbers.  Additionally, Ms. Thigpen reported total deposits for November 

stood at $7,262.00, and that Bayfront Pavilion has seen nine events during November, for a 

total of 10 days used, not including setup days.  This month both facilities will be closed for three 

days. 

 

In addition, she updated the Committee on the following: 

 She reported on her action plan for the Daphne Civic and Visitors Bureau; she is 

currently working to connect with area organizations. 

 Ms. Thigpen listed a number of recently passed and upcoming events through December 

2014, both in the Civic Center and in the surrounding area, which are listed on her report 

herein.   

 Ballroom Dance sales were down from last year both in ticket numbers and revenue 

generated. 

 Capital Improvement for Bayfront: quotes for the flooring have gone before the Mayor.  

She is currently waiting for a third quote and would like to see this work completed in 

January. 

 

4. Building inspection monthly reports (November):  Richard Merchant 

 

Richard Merchant reviewed the building report for the month of November.  He reported 12 new 

residential construction projects initiated, and no new commercial development.  The 

department issued 91 permits during November, with a total job valuation of $2,321,166.00 with 

permit fees totaling $12,210.00.   

 

5. Bayfront property 

 

Previously addressed under Public Participation. 

 

6. Memorial policy 

 

Chairman Davis noted that members should read over the previously given policy of San 

Antonio, Texas.  This policy would be used as the basis from which he and Sarah would develop 

a draft for the Committee to consider for City use. 

 

7. Use of City Hall facilities 

 

Sarah Toulson provided a copy of the drafted form and rules to govern the use of City Hall 

facilities by outside groups.  The following suggestions were made: 

- Change title to reflect that this form governs only City Hall facilities 

December 15 2014 Council Meeting 56



- Report to the Committee on use of City Facilities over the past six months 

- In the future, give quarterly reports of facilities use. 

 

8. Lake Forest Walking Trails Proposition 

 

See Public Participation above. 

 

9. Other Business 

 

Richard Johnson noted the Hazard Mitigation Grant agreement that was on the agenda for 

tonight’s Council meeting.  He explained what the agreement was, and the timeframe needed for 

approval. 

 

With no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 6:28, motion by 

Mr. Fry and seconded by Mr. Davis. 

 

 

 

 

 

December 15 2014 Council Meeting 57



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 58



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 59



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 60



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 61



Code Enforcement / Ordinance Committee 
    Wednesday, December 10, 2014 

1705 Main Street 

Daphne, AL 

Executive Conference Room 

5:30 p.m. 

                                                                             

                                                                                   

Councilman Ron Scott, Chairman                                                       Councilman Pat Rudicell                                                           

Councilman Robin LeJeune                                                                Councilman Randy Fry 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL: 

A quorum being present Chairman Ron Scott called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT:  Ron Scott; Robin LeJeune; Pat Rudicell; Randy Fry 

 

Also present:  Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk, recording secretary; Councilman Joe Davis; Councilwoman 

Conaway; Kevin Boucher, Attorney; Vickie Hinman, HR, Director. 

 

II.  APPROVE MINUTES / November12, 2014 

There were no corrections to the November 12, 2014 minutes and stand approved as written. 

 

III. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
No one spoke. 

 

IV.      ORDINANCE REVIEW  

a.)  Authorizing the Mayor to Enter Into Certain Contracts 

The committee asked Mr. Boucher to bring the ordinance back to the committee at the January 2015 

meeting. 

 

b.)  Council Rules of Procedure Ordinance / 2014-43 

The committee discussed some procedures, and asked Mr. Boucher to research how other cities appoint 

committees and report back at the January meeting. 

 

c.)   Salary Amount for Treasurer 

Council discussed compensating the Treasurer, and asked Mrs. Hinman to get with Archer for a job 

description. The committee asked Mr. Boucher to do some research to see if the city can pay the 

Treasurer and report back to the committee in January. 

 

V.     OTHER BUSINESS 
No other business to discuss. 

 

 

VIII.   NEXT MEETING 
The next meeting will be January 19, 2015 

 

IX.   ADJOURN 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 6:05 p.m.  

 

 

Respectfully submitted 

 

Rebecca A. Hayes,   

Recording Secretary 
  

December 15 2014 Council Meeting 62



DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL 

December 3, 2014 
 
 

COMMITTEE MINUTES 
 

Members Present: Casey Zito, Kennard Balme, Debbie Strahley, Patricia 
Vanderpool, Dorothy Morrison, Council Member Tommie Conaway 
 
Absent: Dayna Oldham, Doug Bailey 
 
Also Present: Sarah Toulson (Recording Secretary) ; Kristin Dunreath 
 
Casey Zito called the meeting to order at 5:30 pm 
 
1. Approval of Minutes:  
 

Motion:  to approve the minutes from the October 22, 2014 meeting as written.  
Moved by Dorothy Morrison, second by Debbie Strahley.   
 

Carried unanimously. 

 
2. Treasurer’s report 
 
Chairwoman Zito reported that the DRA currently had $147,865.68 on hand, 
after all approved expenses cleared. 
 

Motion: to appropriate $262.54 to reimburse Dorothy Morrison for the 
purchase of new trees for the downtown planter boxes.  Moved by Debbie 
Strahley, second by Dorothy Morrison. 
   

Carried unanimously. 

 

Motion: to approve the Treasurer’s Report as reported.  Moved by Debbie 
Strahley, second by Kennard Balme. 
   

Carried unanimously. 

 
3. Discussion: Walking Tour of Downtown Daphne 
 
Chairman Zito updated the Committee on the Christ the King expansion plans 
and their effect on the downtown area.  The Committee discussed the walking 
tour as a good, informative activity. 
 

December 15 2014 Council Meeting 63



Debbie Strahley reported that she will attempt to bring an artist contact to the 
DRA’s January meeting to discuss artistic or unique bicycle racks. 
 
Dorothy Morrison suggested the need to get in touch with Mayor Haygood and 
update him on this project for the downtown area. 
 
4. Museum Rack Cards 
 
Ken Balme reported that the Daphne Museum had been awarded a $2,000.00 
tourism grant, which he would use to produce rack cards to be placed at welcome 
centers across the state.  Mr. Balme introduced Kristin Dunreath, the graphic 
designer and illustrator who produced the rack cards. 
 
5. Administrative Items 
 

 Discussion of insuring that vendors used by DRA were City-used vendors 
that were insured, licensed and bonded has been tabled until the January 
meeting. 

 Ms. Zito reported that she would review the current mini-grant 
application.  Committee discussed need to include a provision on the 
application that funds would be paid to the grant applicant. 

 
6. Constant Contact Seminar:  
 
The Committee discussed the proposal, which is contained in the packet herein. 
 

Motion: to accept the Constant Contact proposal dated September 26, 2014 
from Never Give Up Enterprises.  Moved by Dorothy Morrison, second by 
Debbie Strahley. 
   

Carried unanimously. 

 
Details for the event will be further discussed in January. 
 
7. Any Other Items Deemed Necessary 
 
- Daphne Avenue Shopping Center: Ms. Morrison commented that the 

Beautification Committee was working on getting some additional plantings 
at this location. 

- Christmas Ornaments for City Hall: Mr. Balme mentioned that he would 
speak with a neighbor about possibly donating white reindeer ornaments.  At 
the January meeting, the Committee will discuss what they will contribute to 
next year’s Christmas decorations for the downtown area. 

 
The meeting was adjourned at 6:15  pm.  Motion by Dorothy 
Morrison, second by Debbie Strahley.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

December 15 2014 Council Meeting 64



Next Meeting: January 28th at 5:30 pm. 

December 15 2014 Council Meeting 65



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 66



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 67



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 68



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 69



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 70



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 71



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 72



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 73



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 74



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 75



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 76



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 77



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 78



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 79



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 80



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 81



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 82



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 83



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 84



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 85



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 86



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 87



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 88



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 89



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 90



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 91



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 92



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 93



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 94



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 95



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 96



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 97



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 98



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 99



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 100



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 101



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 102



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 103



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 104



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 105



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 106



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 107



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 108



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 109



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 110



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 111



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 112



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 113



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 114



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 115



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 116



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 117



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 118



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 119



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 120



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 121



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 122



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 123



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 124



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 125



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 126



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 127



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 128



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 129



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 130



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 131



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 132



RESOLUTION NO. 2014-61 

2015-A-FUEL 
 

 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne is required under section 41-16-20 of the Code 
of Alabama to secure competitive bids for items in excess of $15,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne acknowledges that the cost for the FUEL will 
exceed this amount; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff has reviewed the bids for the FUEL and determined that the bid 
as presented is reasonable; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff recommends the bid for the FUEL be awarded to  ____ . 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, THAT THE 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby accept the bid of 
Davison Fuels & Oil for margin cost of: 

   
 Unleaded (89+ Octane / Non-Ethanol) : $ .024 margin 
 Diesel Fuel : $ .024 margin 

 as bid in BID SPECIFICATION NO. 2015-A-FUEL. 

 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS           day of             , 2014. 
 
 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                           
_____________________________ 

                                                                       Dane Haygood, Mayor 

       

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk  

December 15 2014 Council Meeting 133



ORDINANCE NO. 2014-59  
 

FOR THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN PROPERTY TO THE CORPORATE 

LIMITS  

OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

 

Property located West of the Estates of Tiawasee Subdivision and Southeast of the 

Intersection of Park Drive and Pollard Road 

Provision Investment, L.L.C.  

 
  
 BE IT ORDAINED BY CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

 WHEREAS, the owners of the property described in Section 2 of this Ordinance have 

signed and filed a written petition with the City Clerk of the City of Daphne, Alabama, requesting 

that such property be annexed to the corporate limits of the City of Daphne, Alabama; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, all of such property is located and contained within an area contiguous to 

the corporate limits of the City of Daphne, Alabama and does not lie within the corporate limits 

or police jurisdiction of any other municipality; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, said petition contains an accurate description of the property or territory 

proposed to be annexed together with a map of said property showing its relationship to the 

corporate limits of the City of Daphne; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, said petition has been presented to the Planning Commission of the City of 

Daphne at a Special Called meeting on October 30, 2014 and unanimous favorable 

recommendation was approved for the City Council to consider said request for annexation and 

said property shall be zoned R-1, Low Density Single Family Residential District; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, after proper publication, a public hearing was held by the City Council on 

December 15, 2014 concerning the petition for annexation; and, 

  

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama has determined that it is 

in the best interest of said City that the property described in Section 2 hereof be annexed to the 

corporate limits of the City of Daphne, and that all the requirements of Sections 11-42-21 through 

11-42-24, Code of Alabama, 1975, as amended have been complied with by said Petitioner. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, as follows: 

 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 

 

COMMENCE AT A CONCRETE MONUMENT AT THE SOUTHWEST 

CORNER OF LOT 25, THE ESTATES OF TIAWASEE, AS SHOWN BY 

MAP OR PLAT THEREOF RECORDED AT SLIDE 2408-B & C, 

PROBATE RECORDS, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA AND RUN 

THENCE NORTH 03 DEGREES 20 MINUTES 40 SECONDS WEST, 

ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 25, A DISTANCE OF 273.94  

 

 

 

December 15 2014 Council Meeting 134



ORDINANCE 2014-59          ANNEXATION/PROVISION INVESTMENT              PAGE 2 

 

 

FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 03 DEGREES 19 MINUTES 55 SECONDS 

WEST, ALONG THE WEST LINE OF LOT 24 OF SAID ESTATES OF 

TIAWASEE, A DISTANCE OF 304.03 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST 

CORNER OF LOT 18, THE ESTATES OF TIAWASEE; THENCE RUN 

NORTH 03 DEGREES 21 MINUTES 17 SECONDS WEST, ALONG THE 

WEST MARGIN OF THE ESTATES OF TIAWASEE, A DISTANCE OF 

688.64 FEET TO A CONCRETE MONUMENT AT THE NORTHWEST 

CORNER OF SAID THE ESTATES OF TIAWASEE, SAID POINT BEING 

ON THE SOUTH MARGIN OF LAKE FOREST UNIT 12, AS SHOWN BY 

MAP OR PLAT THEREOF, RECORDED AT SLIDE 651-B, PROBATE 

RECORDS, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA; THENCE RUN SOUTH 89 

DEGREES 39 MINUTES 51 SECONDS WEST, ALONG SAID SOUTH 

MARGIN OF LAKE FOREST UNIT 12, A DISTANCE OF 1758.38 FEET; 

THENCE RUN SOUTH 00 DEGREES 05 MINUTES 45 SECONDS WEST, 

A DISTANCE OF 842.22 FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTH MARGIN 

OF PARK DRIVE; THENCE RUN NORTH 87 DEGREES 47 MINUTES 37 

SECONDS EAST, ALONG SAID NORTH MARGIN, A DISTANCE OF 

41.96 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EAST MARGIN OF POLLARD ROAD; 

THENCE RUN SOUTH 00 DEGREES 09 MINUTES 02 SECONDS WEST, 

ALONG SAID EAST MARGIN, A DISTANCE OF 403.21 FEET; THENCE 

RUN SOUTH 89 DEGREES 40 MINUTES 21 SECONDS EAST, A 

DISTANCE OF 1792.72 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. TRACT 

CONTAINS 51.33 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, AND LIES IN SECTION 9, 

TOWNSHIP 5 SOUTH, RANGE 2 EAST, BALDWIN COUNTY, 

ALABAMA. 

 

 

 SECTION 1: CONSENT TO ANNEXATION. The City Council of the City of 

Daphne, Alabama does by this Ordinance assent to the annexation of the property described in 

Section 2 of this Ordinance to the corporate limits of the City of Daphne, Alabama, and does by 

the adoption of this Ordinance, extend and rearrange said corporate limits to embrace and include 

such property. 

 

SECTION 2: THE PROPERTY. That property requested to be annexed into the City of 

Daphne is described in Exhibit "A", attached hereto and made a part of this Ordinance as if fully 

set out herein. 

 
 SECTION 3: MAP OF PROPERTY. The property hereby annexed to the City of 

Daphne, Alabama, is set forth and described in Exhibit "B" and attached hereto a map of the 

property showing its relationship to the corporate limits of the municipality of the City of Daphne 

and made a part of this Ordinance. 

 

 SECTION 4: PUBLICATION. This Ordinance shall be published as required by 

Section 11-42-21, Code of Alabama, 1975, as amended, and the property described herein shall 

be annexed to the corporate limits of the City of Daphne, Alabama, upon such publication. 

 

 SECTION 5: PROBATE COURT.  A description of the property described in this 

Ordinance shall be filed in the Office of the Judge of Probate of Baldwin County, Alabama, as 

required by Section 11-42-21, Code of Alabama, 1975, as amended.  
 

 

 

December 15 2014 Council Meeting 135



 
ORDINANCE 2014-59              ANNEXATION/PROVISION INVESTMENT              PAGE    2 

    

 

 
 ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA on this _____ day of ___________, 2015. 

 

 

     

                                                                                              

________________________________                                                      

       Dane Haygood, 

       Mayor 
        

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, 

City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

December 15 2014 Council Meeting 136



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 137



December 15 2014 Council Meeting 138



ORDINANCE 2014-60 
  

ATRIP PROJECT:  ROUND-A-BOUT @ COUNTY ROAD 13 & 64: 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL PROJECT WITH BALDWIN COUNTY 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2014-44 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2015 Budget on 

September 23, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget, the City Council 

has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be approved and made 
a part of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Round-A-Bout at CR13 & 64 is an approved Alabama Transportation 

Rehabilitation and Improvement Program (ATRIP)  project and grant monies are available 
for this project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City can entered into an agreement with Baldwin County for construction 

of a Round-A-Bout at CR13 &  CR64 for 10 Construction /50% CE&I cost share  of the 
match monies required by the grant; and 
 
WHEREAS, the bids have been received and the cost for the City and the County is 

$215,959/each; and 
 
WHEREAS, Funds in the amount of $43,338.50 for engineering were previously approved 

in Ordinance 2013-19 and paid from the 2012 Construction Fund (total project cost 

$1,777,041.65); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Round-A-Bout Improvements are needed for enhanced traffic flow; and 
   
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that  

 Funds in the amount of $215,959 from the 2012 Construction Fund are 
appropriated and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget for   Round-A-Bout at 
County Road 13 & 64 

 Total remaining project cost of $1,690,364.65  for construction/engineering of which 
ALDOT will reimburse 80% construction with the County and the City’s share each 
being 10% construction & 50% CE&I  (City’s portion- $215,959 and County’s 
portion $215,959 ); and 

 The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute any documents required in order for the 
City of Daphne to participate in such intersection project. 

 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2014. 
                   
          

_________________________________ 
                                                                          Dane Haygood , Mayor 
ATTEST: 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk  

December 15 2014 Council Meeting 139


	AGENDA
	ROLL CALL SHEET
	Council Minutes
	Council Work Session minutes
	Certificate of Appreciation - Melvin McCarley
	Public Hearing Info Provision Investment
	Finance Minutes
	Backup to Finance Minutes 12-15-14
	B &  P Minutes
	Public Safety Minutes
	Ordinance Committee Minutes
	DRA Minutes
	Utility Board Minutes
	Public Hearing Set Date FINAL Kalasountas
	Events Permits - prodisee 2015 permit
	20141124124008
	race maps large

	2014-61 - RES - Fuel
	2014-59 - ORD - ANNEXATION - PROVISION INVESTMENT, LLC
	Backup to 2014-59 - ORD - Provision
	2014-60 - ORD - Round-A-Bout at CR13  CR64 - BC-ALDOT Intergovernmental Project



